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aided and abetted the same, to wit, MAXWELL arranged for Minor
Victim~1 to be transported from Florida to New York, New York on
multiple occasions with the intention that Minor Victim-~1 would
engage in one or more sex acts with Jeffrey Epstein, in
violation of New York Penal Law, Section 130.55.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2423(a) and 2.)

COUNT FIVE
(Sex Trafficking Conspiracy)

The Grand Jury further charges:

22. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
9 of this Indictment are repeated and realleged as 1if fully set
forth within.

23. From at least in or about 2001, up to and
including in or about 2004, in the Southern District of New York
and elsewhere, GHISLAINE MAXWELL, the defendant, Jeffrey
Epstein, and others known and unknown, willfully and knowingly
did combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together and with
each other to commit an offense against the United States, to
wit, sex trafficking of minors, in viclation of Title 18, United
States Code, Section 1591 (a) and (b).

24. It was a part and object of the conspiracy that
GHISLAINE MAXWELL, the defendant, Jeffrey Epstein, and others
known and unknown, would and did, in and affecting interstate
and foreign commerce, recruit, entice, harbor, transport,

provide, and obtain, by any means a person, and to benefit,
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financially and by receiving anything of value, from
participation in a venture which has engaged in any such act,
knowing that the person had not attained the age of 18 years and
would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act, in violation
of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591 (a) and (b) (2).
Overt Acts
25. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect

the illegal object thereof, the following overt acts, among
others, were committed in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere:

a. Between in or about 2001 and in or about
2004, Epstein and MAXWELL recruited Minor Victim-4 to engage in
sex acts with EPSTEIN at the Palm Beach Residenée, after which
Epstein and, at times, MAXWELL provided Minor Victim-4 with
hundreds of dollars in cash for each encounter. Minor Victim-4
ftruthfully told both Epstein and MAXWELL her age.

b. Between in or about 2001 and in or about
2004, Epstein and MAXWELL both encouraged and enticed Minor
Victim-4 to recruit other girls to engage in paid sex acts with
Epstein, which she did.

C. Between in or about 2001 and in or about
2004, Epstein’s employees, including at times MAXWELL, sent
Minor Victim~4 gifts, including lingerie, from an address in the

Southern District of New York to Minor Victim-4's residence 1in
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Florida. For example, on one occasion in or about October of
2002, Epstein caused a package to be sent by Federal Express
from an address in Manhattan to Minor Victim-4 in Florida.

d. On multiple occasions between in or about
2001 and in or about 2004, Epstein, MAXWELL, or one of Epstein’s
other employees called Minor Victim-4 to schedule an appointment
for Minor Victim-4 to massage Epstein. For example, in or about
April of 2004 and May of 2004 another employee of Epstein’s
called Minor Victim-4 to schedule such appointments.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.)

COUNT SIX
(Sex Trafficking of a Minor)

The Grand Jury further charges:

26. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
9 of this Indictment are repeated and realleged as if fully set
forth within.

27. From at least in or about 2001, up to and
including in or about 2004, in the Southern District of New York
and elsewhere, GHISLAINE MAXWELL, the defendant, willfully and
knowingly, in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, did
recruit, entice, harbor, transport, provide, and obtain by any
means a person, knowing that the person had not attained the age
of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex
act, and did aid and abet the same, to wit, MAXWELL recruited,

enticed, harbored, transported, provided, and obtained
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individuals who were less than 18 years old, including but not
limited to Minor Victim-4, as described above, and who were then
caused to engage in at least one commercial sex act with Jeffrey
Epstein, and aided and abetted the same.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 1591 (a),
(b) (2), and 2.)

COUNT SEVEN
(Perjury)

The Grand Jury further charges:

28. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
9 of this Indictment are repeated and realleged as if fully set
forth within.

29. On or about April 22, 2016, in the Southern
District of New York, GHISLAINE MAXWELL, the defendant, having
taken an oath to testify truthfully in a deposition in
connection with a case then pending before the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York under
docket number 15 Civ. 7433, knowingly made false material
declarations, to wit, MAXWELL gave the following underlined
false testimony:

0. Did Jeffrey Epstein have a scheme to recruit
underage girls for sexual massages? If you know.

A. I don’t know what you’re talking about.

Q. List all the people under the age of 18 that you
interacted with at any of Jeffrey’s properties?
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